
Capital Improvements Program Committee   1 
August 4, 2017 Minutes 
 

 

 
Town of Wolfeboro 

Capital Improvements Program Committee 
August 4, 2017 

Minutes 
 
 
 
Members Present:  Kathy Barnard, Chairman, Linda Murray, Board of Selectmen’s Representative, Joyce 
Davis, Bob Tougher, Paul O’Brien, Mike Hodder, Jim Shildneck, members. 
 
Staff Present:  Matt Sullivan, Director of Planning and Development, Dave Owen, Town Manager, Peter 
Chamberlin, Finance Director, Barry Muccio, Municipal Electric Department, Dave Ford, Public Works 
Department, Lee Ann Hendrickson, Administrative Secretary. 
 
Chairman Barnard called the meeting to order at the Town Hall Annex conference room at 8AM. 
 
 

I. 2018-2027 Capital Improvements Program Development 

Municipal Electric Department 
2018 Reconstruction of Wolfeboro’s Section of 390 Line; $784,000 
Barry Muccio stated the engineering and surveying of such is currently being done.  He stated 
$784,000 is a placeholder figure; noting such would be adjusted following the completion of 
the engineering and surveying.  He stated Wolfeboro’s section (3.6 miles) interconnects with 
Eversource Energy from the Wolfeboro Tuftonboro border to the former Substation #1 site at 
the Glendon Street parking lot.  He stated the original line was constructed in 1964 and is the 
sole power supply route to Wolfeboro. 
 
Paul O’Brien noted the department priority states “necessary” however, the rationale is not 
checked as “urgent”. 
 
Barry Muccio stated he would revise both to reflect urgent. 

 
2019 Reconstruct Melody and Keniston Island; $375,000 
Barry Muccio stated the project includes the reconstruction of the overhead electrical 
distribution systems, including new pole structure; noting the system is 60+ years old. 
 
Paul O’Brien questioned whether the condition of the system is an eminent threat to public 
health/safety. 
 
Barry Muccio stated the project would alleviate substandard conditions; noting he would revise 
the form to reflect such. 
 
Linda Murray asked why the project was moved from 2018 to 2019. 
 
Barry Muccio stated he will be focusing on the reconstruction of the 390 line in 2018. 

 



Capital Improvements Program Committee   2 
August 4, 2017 Minutes 
 

 

2019 Substation No. 4; $902,000 
Barry Muccio stated the project includes the construction of a new 34.5kV to 12.47kV substation 
and feeder position, including voltage regulation and reclosing capabilities, at the former 
Substation No. 1 location (behind the power plant at 22 Lehner Street).  He stated the new 
substation would relieve the South Main Street load from Substation No. 3 in order to 
accommodate the Forest Road and No. Main Street loads.  He noted the proposal would 
diversify the circuit feeder source by creating an alternative source with potential switching and 
tying capabilities. 
 
Linda Murray noted the previous CIP noted two substations. 
 
Barry Muccio stated one new substation was removed following review of the systems study 
conducted last year. 
 
2020 Submarine Cable Feeder; $360,000 
Barry Muccio stated the project consists of new submarine cable feeders (3,000’) from Piper’s 
Point in Alton to Barndoor, Keniston and Melody Islands, including new cable riser assemblies, 
shoreline conduit and protective structures.  He stated one of the feeders has failed and 
records indicate the cable was installed in 1974; noting a splice on the mainland goes from 
overhead to underground.  He stated the cable was formerly fed from Clark Road (Romney 
property) however, it currently feeds from a location that has been developed with established 
home and no easement.  He stated the prime location, if there are no restrictions, would be to 
relocate the feed from Clark Road. 
 
Jim Shildneck questioned whether McKinney Park could be a potential location; noting a right-
of-way between the park and the Zulauf property. 
 
Linda Murray questioned whether the $360,000 includes the relocation. 
 
Barry Muccio replied yes. 
 
Dave Owen questioned whether the old cables would be removed if it were relocated. 
 
Barry Muccio replied no; noting such would create more of a disturbance to the ecosystem.  He 
stated the feeders would be abandoned in place. 
 
2020 Forest Road Conversion; $1,126,000 
Project:  Voltage conversion of Forest Road from 4kV to 12kV, including poles, transformers and 
insulators. 
 
2021  North Main Street Conversion; $1,333,000 
Project:  Voltage conversion of North Main Street to Tuftonboro from 4kV to 12kV, including 
poles, transformers and insulators. 
 
2022 Decommissioning Substation No. 2; $66,000 
Project:  Decommissioning the 4kV Pine Hill Substation No. 2 on Filterbed Road. 
 
 



Capital Improvements Program Committee   3 
August 4, 2017 Minutes 
 

 

2022 ME-2 Bucket Truck; $225,000 
Barry Muccio stated the truck would replace the 2010 bucket truck. 
 
Dave Owen noted the balance of the Electric Fund is in excess of $5 million; noting all proposed 
projects except for the Substation No. 3 expansion.  He noted the previous bond will come off 
the books that year. 

 
<2022 Substation No. 3 Expansion; $850,000 
Project:  Construction of two new 34.5kV to 12.47kV substation and feeder positions at the 
existing Substation No. 3 location mirroring the existing substation equipment with facilities 
already in place for expansion. 
 

 
Linda Murray questioned whether the fees are set to include the projects. 

 
Dave Owen stated the fee structure generates a surplus of $300,000/year. 

 
 

Public Works Department 
2018 Roadway Upgrades; $800,000 
Dave Ford stated such consists of the annual road and drainage upgrades; noting Keewaydin 
Road, College Road, Trotting Track Road and Martin Hill Road are proposed for upgrades in 
2018.  He stated the Town received $153,000 from the State to be used specifically for roads; 
noting a public hearing is scheduled to accept the funding.  He stated the funds would be used 
for North Wolfeboro Road (project to be completed in 2019).  He noted he would change 
“urgent” to “necessary” on the project request form. 
 
Linda Murray asked why the funding request is not a capital outlay request of the operating 
budget. 
 
Dave Ford stated he would prefer to keep the request in the CIP. 
 
Dave Owen expressed concern for the projected increase in 2019 to $1 million and impact to the 
tax rate.  He stated an annual increase of $50,000 is significant going forward. 
 
Paul O’Brien asked who quantifies the decrease of the operating budget. 
 
Dave Ford replied no one.  
 
Linda Murray questioned the ability for time and staffing to perform the analysis. 
 
Dave Ford noted the errors on the 2018 Proposed Road Upgrade List, Keewaydin Road, Traffic, 
Unit Cost and Estimated Costs and Contingency.  He stated he would revise the list to reflect 
the correct figures.  Referencing the CIP Index, he noted a correction to Route 28 – NHDOT 10-
Year Plan Project; Year 2020 change figure to $544,057. 
 
 
 



Capital Improvements Program Committee   4 
August 4, 2017 Minutes 
 

 

2018 Railroad Avenue Extension; $70,000 
Dave Ford stated this project was held out from the roadway upgrades project request; noting 
the project includes the layout and construction of a Town road from Railroad Avenue by Back 
Bay boat launch to Bridge Falls Pathway crossing.  He stated currently the Town owns and 
maintains Railroad Avenue as a Town road, except for the gravel portion that runs by the 
condominiums and Railroad Freight storage building.  He stated the road would be rebuilt 
adding a drainage system and paved with an option for additional parking.  He noted the 
project is currently being engineered. 
 
2018 Bay Street Sidewalks; $45,000 
Dave Ford stated this project is a new project from the 2016 Sidewalks project; noting the latter 
needs to be completed.  He stated this project would require surveying/engineering and 
easements.  He stated the engineering in proposed for 2018. 
 
The Committee expressed support of the engineering study. 
 
Referencing the CIP Index, Dave Ford noted a correction to Sidewalks, North Main (extension) 
Sidewalks, 2020 Other Funds; insert $70,000.  He noted such would be funded by Trustee of the 
Trust Funds. 
 
2018 Dockside Parking Lot Upgrades; $250,000 
Dave Ford stated he is proposing to reclaim the existing pavement and replace in-kind, 
including drainage improvements however, not treatment improvements. 
 
Matt Sullivan stated by reclaiming the parking lot the Town is committing to a 20 year decision 
therefore, recommended deferring the project and further explore options. 
 
Dave Owen noted the Town Docks extension project is scheduled for 2019. 
 
Linda Murray noted restrooms at Dockside are also being proposed. 
 
Dave Ford requesting capital reserve funding for the project if the project is to be deferred. 
 
The Committee agreed to revisit the Dockside Parking Lot Upgrades project request; noting the 
project would not be scheduled for 2018.  
 
2018 Solid Waste Building Expansion; $140,000 
Dave Ford reviewed his memo, dated 12/17/15; noting the project would include expansion of 
the large building by adding 30’, 40’ wide (1200 SF).  He noted the Public Works Department 
would perform the site work. 
 
2018 Dockside Restroom Upgrades; $150,000 
Dave Ford stated the project includes one urinal, one stall, one ADA and baby changing station 
for the men’s restroom and two stalls, one ADA and baby changing station for the women’s 
restroom.  He stated the restrooms would be heated and open year round. 
 
 
 



Capital Improvements Program Committee   5 
August 4, 2017 Minutes 
 

 

2018 Building Capital Reserve Fund; $75,000 
Dave Ford noted the fund was approved by the voters in 2016 with $30,000 being appropriated.  
He stated $ 50,000 was appropriated in 2017.  He noted the funds were used in 2017 to address 
building deficiencies at Dockside Restaurant and to correct a sewer pipe issue in the Town Hall.   
 
2018 Highway and Solid Waste Vehicle and Equipment Capital Reserve Fund; $170,000 
Dave Ford stated the intent is to replace HD-7 and HD-27. 

  
 

II. Other Business 
 Next CIP Committee meeting scheduled for August 11, 2017, 8 AM at the Libby Museum – 

agenda to include Public Works Department, Libby Museum (including a tour) 
 
 
 
The Committee agreed to the following; 

 Revisit Dockside Parking Lot Upgrades (consider capital reserve funding) 

 Explore phasing of projects; Dockside parking lot upgrades, Dockside restrooms and expansion of 
Town Docks 

 
There being no further business before the Committee, the meeting adjourned at 9:37 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Lee Ann Hendrickson 

Lee Ann Hendrickson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


